
Agenda for a meeting of the Shipley Area Committee to 
be held on Wednesday, 14 February 2018 at 6.00 pm in 
the Council Chamber - Shipley Town Hall
Members of the Committee – Councillors
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR GREEN
Heseltine
Shaw
Barker
Davies
Riaz
Townend

Greenwood Love
H Hussain

Alternates:
CONSERVATIVE LABOUR GREEN
Cooke
Ellis
Pennington
M Pollard
D Smith
Whiteley

Hinchcliffe
Ross-Shaw

Warnes

Notes:
 This agenda can be made available in Braille, large print or tape format on request by 

contacting the Agenda contact shown below.
 The taking of photographs, filming and sound recording of the meeting is allowed except if 

Councillors vote to exclude the public to discuss confidential matters covered by Schedule 12A 
of the Local Government Act 1972. Recording activity should be respectful to the conduct of 
the meeting and behaviour that disrupts the meeting (such as oral commentary) will not be 
permitted. Anyone attending the meeting who wishes to record or film the meeting's 
proceedings is advised to liaise with the Agenda Contact who will provide guidance and ensure 
that any necessary arrangements are in place. Those present who are invited to make spoken 
contributions to the meeting should be aware that they may be filmed or sound recorded.

 If any further information is required about any item on this agenda, please contact the officer 
named at the foot of that agenda item.

Decisions on items marked * are not Executive functions and may not be called in under 
Paragraph 8.7 of Part 3E of the Constitution.
From: To:
Michael Bowness
Interim City Solicitor
Agenda Contact: Palbinder Sandhu
Phone: 01274 432269
E-Mail: palbinder.sandhu@bradford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



2

A. PROCEDURAL ITEMS

1.  ALTERNATE MEMBERS  (Standing Order 34) 

The City Solicitor will report the names of alternate Members who are 
attending the meeting in place of appointed Members.  

2.  DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST 
(Members Code of Conduct - Part 4A of the Constitution)

To receive disclosures of interests from members and co-opted 
members on matters to be considered at the meeting. The disclosure 
must include the nature of the interest.

An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes 
apparent to the member during the meeting.

Notes:

(1) Members may remain in the meeting and take part fully in 
discussion and voting unless the interest is a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or an interest which the Member feels would 
call into question their compliance with the wider principles set 
out in the Code of Conduct.  Disclosable pecuniary interests 
relate to the Member concerned or their spouse/partner.

(2) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months 
must not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget 
calculations, and must disclose at the meeting that this 
restriction applies to them.  A failure to comply with these 
requirements is a criminal offence under section 106 of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992.  

(3) Members are also welcome to disclose interests which are not 
disclosable pecuniary interests but which they consider should 
be made in the interest of clarity.

(4) Officers must disclose interests in accordance with Council 
Standing Order 44.

3.  INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS 
(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)

Reports and background papers for agenda items may be inspected by 
contacting the person shown after each agenda item.  Certain reports 
and background papers may be restricted.  

Any request to remove the restriction on a report or background paper 



3

should be made to the relevant Strategic Director or Assistant Director 
whose name is shown on the front page of the report.  

If that request is refused, there is a right of appeal to this meeting.  

Please contact the officer shown below in advance of the meeting if 
you wish to appeal.  

(Palbinder Sandhu - 01274 432269)

4.  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 
(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)

To hear questions from electors within the District on any matter this is 
the responsibility of the Committee.  

Questions must be received in writing by the City Solicitor in 
Room 112, City Hall, Bradford, BD1 1HY, by mid-day on Monday 
12 February 2018.

(Palbinder Sandhu - 01274 432269)

B. BUSINESS ITEMS

5.  *SHIPLEY AREA COMMITTEE AND SHIPLEY CONSTITUENCY 
AREA PARTNERS' ADVISORY GROUP (SCAPAG) ISSUES 

Up to a maximum of 15 minutes will be allowed for SCAPAG members 
to raise new items of information, questions, requests or suggestions 
that may have arisen within their organisation/neighbourhood and 
which are relevant to raise at the meeting.

Issues raised in accordance with the above must be received in writing 
by the Shipley Area Co-ordinator’s Office in Shipley Town Hall, 
Shipley, BD18 3EJ, by mid-day on Monday 12 February 2018.

(Damian Fisher – 01274 437146)

6.  *SCAPAG MEETING NOTES - 24 JANUARY 2018 

The Area Co-ordinator will present the notes (Document “X”) of 
SCAPAG contributions made at the meeting with the Area Committee 
held on 24 January 2018.

Recommended – 

That the notes be received.
(Damian Fisher – 01274 437146)

1 - 2



4

7.  NOMINATION TO LIST PROPERTY AS AN ASSET OF COMMUNITY 
VALUE - BURLEY COMMUNITY LIBRARY 

The Council has received a nomination to list property known as Burley 
Community Library as an Asset of Community Value under the 
Localism Act 2011.

The Interim Strategic Director of Corporate Services will submit 
Document “Y” which considers whether the nomination and 
nominated asset meet the Asset of Community Value criteria set out in 
the Localism Act and contains a recommendation as to whether or not 
the nomination should be approved.

Recommended – 

That the nomination of the property known as Burley Community 
Library Grange Road, Burley in Wharfedale, LS29 7HD as an Asset 
of Community Value be accepted.

(Corporate/Regeneration & Economy Overview & Scrutiny Committee)
(Nigel Gillatt – 01274 434224)

3 - 22

8.  NOMINATION TO LIST PROPERTY AS AN ASSET OF COMMUNITY 
VALUE - DENHOLME COMMUNITY LIBRARY 

The Council has received a nomination to list property known as 
Denholme Community Library as an Asset of Community Value under 
the Localism Act 2011.

The Interim Strategic Director of Corporate Services will submit 
Document “Z” which considers whether the nomination and 
nominated asset meet the Asset of Community Value criteria set out in 
the Localism Act and contains a recommendation as to whether or not 
the nomination should be approved.

Recommended – 

That the nomination of the property known as Denholme 
Community Library, Mechanics Institute, Main Road, Denholme, 
BD13 4BL as an Asset of Community Value be accepted.

(Corporate/Regeneration & Economy Overview & Scrutiny Committee)
(Nigel Gillatt – 01274 434224)

23 - 38



5

9.  PROPOSAL FOR THE RESTRUCTURE OF SPECIAL 
EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND DISABILITIES (SEND) SPECIALIST 
TEACHING SUPPORT SERVICES 

The Strategic Director of Children’s Services will submit Document 
“AA” which presents the revised proposed model for the restructuring 
of Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) Specialist 
Teaching Support Services for children and young people with SEND 
to improve their educational outcomes.

Recommended – 

That the details of Document “AA” be noted and commented 
upon.

(Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee)
(Judith Kirk – 01274 439255)

39 - 76

THIS AGENDA AND ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 

 
SHIPLEY AREA COMMITTEE AND SHIPLEY CONSTITUENCY ARE A PARTNERS’ 

ADVISORY GROUP (SCAPAG) 
WEDNESDAY 24 JANUARY 2018 

BINGLEY TOWN HALL 

X 
 
NOTES OF SCAPAG CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE MEETING 
 
Present:   Dorothy Davey (Bingley Town Neighbourhood Forum); Howard Clough 

(Cottingley Community Association); Gianfranco Sabelli (NE Windhill 
Community Association); Geoff Winnard (Bingley Town Council)  

 
Apologies: Trevor Dufton (Wilsden Parish Council); David Jessop & Gillian Thorne 

(Wrose Parish Council); Gordon Lakin (Eldwick & Gilstead Neighbourhood 
Forum) 

  
 
Item 5:  SCAPAG ISSUES  
 
No issues. 
 
Item 6:  SCAPAG MEETING NOTES – 13 DECEMBER 2017 
 
No comments. 
 
Item 7:  PREVENTION AND EARLY HELP – A PROPOSED NEW  MODEL TO 
SUPPORT FAMILIES AND COMMUNITIES 
 
Presenting Officer: Judith Kirk  
 
No comments. 
 
 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6/



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

Report of the Interim Strategic Director of Corpora te 
Services to the meeting of Shipley Area Committee t o 
be held on 14 th February 2018  
 
 
Subject: 

Y 
 

Nomination to list the property as an Asset of Comm unity Value – Burley 
Community Library, Grange Road Burley in Wharfedale  LS29 7HD. 
 
Summary statement: 
 
The Council has received a nomination to list the p roperty known as Burley 
Community Library as an Asset of Community Value un der the Localism Act 2011. 
 
This report considers whether the nomination and no minated asset meet the Asset 
of Community Value criteria set out in the Localism  Act and contains a 
recommendation as to whether or not the nomination should be approved. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Parveen Akhtar 
Interim Strategic Director of Corporate 
Services 
 

Portfolio :  Regeneration , Planning and 
Transport 
 
 

Report Contact: Nigel Gillatt, 
Senior Estates Surveyor 
Phone: (01274) 434224 
E-mail: nigel.gillatt2@bradford.gov.uk  

 Overview & Scrutiny Area: 
Corporate/Regeneration & Economy 
  
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 7/



 
 

 

1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The Council has received a nomination to list the property known as Burley 

Community Library  as an Asset of Community Value under the Localism Act 
2011. This report considers whether the nomination and nominated asset meet the 
Asset of Community Value Criteria set out in the Localism Act and contains a 
recommendation as to whether or not the nomination should be approved. 

 
2. BACKGROUND  
 
2.1 The Community Right to Bid provisions of the Localism Act 2011 came into effect 

on 21st September 2012.  The purpose of the provisions is to allow communities 
time to prepare bids for land and property assessed as being of benefit to the 
community when those assets come up for disposal.  

  
3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1      The Community Right to Bid 
 
3.1.1 Local community groups and parish councils are able to nominate privately and 
 publicly owned land and property for inclusion on a list of assets of community 
 value. The list is maintained by CBMDC which is also responsible for managing the 
 process for determining whether a nomination of a property as an asset of 
 community value is successful.  At its meeting of 6th November 2012 the Executive 
 resolved that the determination of nominations be devolved to Area Committee. 
 
3.1.2 The listing of land or property as an Asset of Community Value has the effect of 

preventing owners from disposing of their listed property without first notifying the 
Council of their intention to sell. The notification of intention to sell triggers a six 
week moratorium on disposal during which local community groups and parish 
councils are able to express an interest in bidding for the property. If no expressions 
of interest are received the owner is free to dispose of his property at the end of the 
six week period. If an expression of interest is received the initial six week 
moratorium extends to six months to allow community groups and parish councils to 
prepare to bid for the property or to negotiate with the property owner. At the end of 
the six month period the owner is able to sell the property to whoever they want and 
by whatever means they wish. If the property is not sold within 18 months of the 
notification of intention to sell the disposal process must start again. Once sold the 
property is removed from the list. 

 
3.1.3   The Community Right to Bid provisions do not :  
 

• Give community groups or parish councils a right of first refusal when listed land 
and buildings come up for sale. 

• Give community groups or a parish council the right to purchase land and 
property listed as assets of community value at a reduced price i.e. less than 
market value. 

 

Page 4



 
 

 

• Compel a property owner to sell to a community group or parish council. Once 
the procedures set out in the Act are complied with property owners are free to 
sell their property to whomever they wish. 

• Restrict how a property owner can use their property. 
 

3.2 Definition of an Asset of Community Value 
 
3.2.1 The Act provides that land or property falls within the definition of asset of 

community value where its current primary use furthers the social wellbeing or 
social interests of the local community, and  where it is realistic to think that this use 
will continue. Social interests include culture, recreation and sport. A property will 
also qualify when its main use in the recent past meets the definition, and  it is 
realistic to think that its use may again fall within the definition within the next five 
years (whether or not in the same way as before). 

 
3.2.2 Social interests include a) cultural interests; b) recreational interests; c) sporting 

interests. Wellbeing is the things that people value in their life that contributes to 
them reaching their potential (economic, social or environmental). 

 
3.2.3 The Act sets out details of certain types of land and property which are exempt from 

the Community Right to Bid provisions. 
 
3.3 Who can nominate an asset to be listed 
 
3.3.1 Nominations to list an asset as being of community value can be made by: 
 

• A local voluntary or community group that is incorporated – this means it has 
a separate legal status from its members. 

• A local voluntary or community group that is not incorporated but has at least 
21 members who appear on the electoral roll within CBMDC or a neighboring 
authority. 

• A parish council. 
• Neighboring parish councils – if a parish council borders an unparished area 

it may nominate asset within that area. 
• Community interest groups with a local connection which has one of the 

following structures: 
a) A charity. 
b) A community interest company. 
c) A company limited by guarantee that is non profit distributing. 
d) An industrial provident society that is non profit distributing. 

 
For a local group to be able to nominate it must be able to demonstrate 
that its activities are wholly or partly concerned with the local authority 
area within which the asset is located or with a neighbouring authority 
(which shares a boundary with Bradford). 

 
3.4 The Nomination 
 
3.4.1   The nomination application is included at Appendix 1. 
 

Page 5



 
 

 

3.4.2  Officers have assessed the nomination and have found that:  
 

Criteria Finding  Comment Criteria 
Met? 

The nominator is eligible to nominate 
Assets of Community Value? 

Yes 

Burley in Wharfedale 
Community Trust (BWCT) 
is a charity, i.e. an 
incorporated body.  

Yes 

Is the nominated asset exempt from 
listing? No  Yes 

The land and buildings are used (and 
in the past 5 years) to further the 
social wellbeing and social interests of 
the local community (as defined by the 
Localism Act 2011) and this use is not 
ancillary. 

Yes 

The nominated property is 
extensively used for 
community activities for 
both adults and children 
including village group 
meetings, theatre 
rehearsals, reading and 
computer hub, special 
community events.  

Yes 

It is realistic to think that the building 
or land will continue to be used in a 
way which will further the social well-
being and social interests of the 
community within the next 5 years? 

Yes 
This facility intends to 
continue for the 
foreseeable future.  

Yes 

 
 

3.4.3 Accordingly, Council’s Officers have assessed that the criteria for listing have been 
met and recommend that Burley Community Library  edged red on the plans 
attached (Appendix 2) is listed as an Asset of Community Value. 

 
3.5 Appeals & Listing  
 
3.5.1 Property owners (but not occupiers) may appeal against the Council’s decision to 

list their property as an asset of community value. In the first instance the property 
owner should ask the Council to review its decision. If the Council upholds its 
decision to list, the owner may appeal to the First Tier Tribunal.  

 
3.5.2 There is no provision within the Act for nominators to challenge a decision not to list 
 a property or decision to remove a property from the list following a review. 
 However, the Council will be required to provide nominators with reasons why their 
 application is unsuccessful or why a property has been removed from the list. 
 
3.5.3 As mentioned at 3.1.3 above the listing of land or property as an Asset of 
 Community Value does not prevent a land owner from changing the use of the 
 listed asset. The Act provides that a listed asset can be removed from the list if the 
 nature of the asset changes so that it is unrealistic to expect it to be used for social, 
 sporting, environmental benefits in the near future. An example of substantial 
 change would be the progression of development works. 
 

Page 6



 
 

 

3.5.4 The listing of an asset is not retrospective and has no effect on binding agreements 
 for sale already in place at the date of listing. 
 
4. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL  
 
4.1  None.  

  
4.2  A property owner has a right to compensation for losses incurred as a result of 

listing.   
 
5. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 
5.1  None 
 
6. LEGAL APPRAISAL  
 
6.1  Land or property may only be listed as an Asset of Community Value where it 

meets the criteria and definitions set out in the Localism Act 2011. 
 
6.2  Property owners may appeal against the decision to list their property as an Asset 

of Community Value. In the first instance the decision to list the property will be 
subject to internal review within the council. If the council upholds the decision to 
list, the owner may appeal to the First Tier Tribunal. 

 
7. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY  
 
 None 
 
7.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS  
 
 None 
 
7.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 
 None 
 
7.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS  
 
 None 
 
7.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT  
 
 None 
 
7.6 TRADE UNION 
 
 None 

 

Page 7



 
 

 

7.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None 
 
8. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS  
 
 None. 
 
9. OPTIONS 
 
9.1 Option 1: Accept the nomination on the grounds that it meets the criteria and 

definition of an Asset of Community Value as set out in the Localism Act 2011.  
 
9.2 Option 2:  Reject the nomination on the grounds that it does not meet the criteria    

and definition of an Asset of Community Value as set out in the Localism Act 2011. 
 
9.3 Option 1  is the preferred option as the nominated asset does meet the criteria for 

listing set out in the Act. 
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Recommended -  
 

That in accordance with Option 1, the nomination of the property known as Burley 
Community Library, Grange Road Burley in Wharfedale LS29 7HD as an Asset of 
Community Value is accepted. 

 
11. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 - Nomination Form 
 
Appendix 2 – Plan 

  
12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS  
 
 Report to the Executive meeting of 6th November 2012; The Localism Act 2011 – 
 The Community Right to Bid. 

Page 8



   Appendix 1

Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



3

GVC

Burley

Green

Bowling

Lib
rar

y

Post Office

12

33

12a 12b

Community Centre

GRANGE ROAD

Burley

GVC

Ü

ACV 0063 - Burley Community Library

© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey 0100019304
Date: 06/12/20171:500

Scale at A4

 Appendix 2

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Report of the Interim Strategic Director of Corpora te 
Services to the meeting of Shipley Area Committee t o 
be held on 14 th February 2018  
 

Z 
Subject: 
 
Nomination to list part of property as an Asset of Community Value – Denholme 
Community Library, Mechanics Institute, Main Road, Denholme BD13 4BL. 
 
Summary statement: 
 
The Council has received a nomination to list part of property known as Denholme 
Community Library as an Asset of Community Value un der the Localism Act 2011. 
 
This report considers whether the nomination and no minated asset meet the Asset 
of Community Value criteria set out in the Localism  Act and contains a 
recommendation as to whether or not the nomination should be approved. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Parveen Akhtar 
Interim Strategic Director of Corporate 
Services 
 

Portfolio :  Regeneration , Planning and 
Transport 
 
 

Report Contact: Nigel Gillatt, 
Senior Estates Surveyor 
Phone: (01274) 434224 
E-mail: nigel.gillatt2@bradford.gov.uk  

 Overview & Scrutiny Area: 
Corporate/Regeneration & Economy 
  
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 8/



 
 

 

1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The Council has received a nomination to list part of property known as Denholme 

Community Library  as an Asset of Community Value under the Localism Act 
2011. This report considers whether the nomination and nominated asset meet the 
Asset of Community Value Criteria set out in the Localism Act and contains a 
recommendation as to whether or not the nomination should be approved. 

 
2. BACKGROUND  
 
2.1 The Community Right to Bid provisions of the Localism Act 2011 came into effect 

on 21st September 2012.  The purpose of the provisions is to allow communities 
time to prepare bids for land and property assessed as being of benefit to the 
community when those assets come up for disposal.  

  
3. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1      The Community Right to Bid 
 
3.1.1 Local community groups and parish councils are able to nominate privately and 
 publicly owned land and property for inclusion on a list of assets of community 
 value. The list is maintained by CBMDC which is also responsible for managing the 
 process for determining whether a nomination of a property as an asset of 
 community value is successful.  At its meeting of 6th November 2012 the Executive 
 resolved that the determination of nominations be devolved to Area Committee. 
 
3.1.2 The listing of land or property as an Asset of Community Value has the effect of 

preventing owners from disposing of their listed property without first notifying the 
Council of their intention to sell. The notification of intention to sell triggers a six 
week moratorium on disposal during which local community groups and parish 
councils are able to express an interest in bidding for the property. If no expressions 
of interest are received the owner is free to dispose of his property at the end of the 
six week period. If an expression of interest is received the initial six week 
moratorium extends to six months to allow community groups and parish councils to 
prepare to bid for the property or to negotiate with the property owner. At the end of 
the six month period the owner is able to sell the property to whoever they want and 
by whatever means they wish. If the property is not sold within 18 months of the 
notification of intention to sell the disposal process must start again. Once sold the 
property is removed from the list. 

 
3.1.3   The Community Right to Bid provisions do not :  
 

• Give community groups or parish councils a right of first refusal when listed land 
and buildings come up for sale. 

• Give community groups or a parish council the right to purchase land and 
property listed as assets of community value at a reduced price i.e. less than 
market value. 

 
 
 

Page 24



 
 

 

• Compel a property owner to sell to a community group or parish council. Once 
the procedures set out in the Act are complied with property owners are free to 
sell their property to whomever they wish. 

• Restrict how a property owner can use their property. 
 

3.2 Definition of an Asset of Community Value 
 
3.2.1 The Act provides that land or property falls within the definition of asset of 

community value where its current primary use furthers the social wellbeing or 
social interests of the local community, and  where it is realistic to think that this use 
will continue. Social interests include culture, recreation and sport. A property will 
also qualify when its main use in the recent past meets the definition, and  it is 
realistic to think that its use may again fall within the definition within the next five 
years (whether or not in the same way as before). 

 
3.2.2 Social interests include a) cultural interests; b) recreational interests; c) sporting 

interests. Wellbeing is the things that people value in their life that contributes to 
them reaching their potential (economic, social or environmental). 

 
3.2.3 The Act sets out details of certain types of land and property which are exempt from 

the Community Right to Bid provisions. 
 
3.3 Who can nominate an asset to be listed 
 
3.3.1 Nominations to list an asset as being of community value can be made by: 
 

• A local voluntary or community group that is incorporated – this means it has 
a separate legal status from its members. 

• A local voluntary or community group that is not incorporated but has at least 
21 members who appear on the electoral roll within CBMDC or a neighboring 
authority. 

• A parish council. 
• Neighboring parish councils – if a parish council borders an unparished area 

it may nominate asset within that area. 
• Community interest groups with a local connection which has one of the 

following structures: 
a) A charity. 
b) A community interest company. 
c) A company limited by guarantee that is non profit distributing. 
d) An industrial provident society that is non profit distributing. 

 
For a local group to be able to nominate it must be able to demonstrate 
that its activities are wholly or partly concerned with the local authority 
area within which the asset is located or with a neighbouring authority 
(which shares a boundary with Bradford). 

 
3.4 The Nomination 
 
3.4.1   The nomination application is included at Appendix 1. 
 

Page 25



 
 

 

3.4.2  Officers have assessed the nomination and have found that:  
 

Criteria Finding  Comment Criteria 
Met? 

The nominator is eligible to nominate 
Assets of Community Value? 

Yes 

Denholme Community 
Library is an 
unincorporated body with 
at least 21 members 
whose names and 
addresses are available 
on request.  

Yes 

Is the nominated asset exempt from 
listing? No  Yes 

The land and buildings are used (and 
in the past 5 years) to further the 
social wellbeing and social interests of 
the local community (as defined by the 
Localism Act 2011) and this use is not 
ancillary. 

Yes 

The nominated property 
has been used for the last 
6 years as library and a 
social hub for the village, 
which is used by both 
children and adults. The 
facility offers coffee 
mornings, exhibitions 
(famous authors, Great 
War) and other events to 
bring people together and 
combat loneliness.  
 

Yes 

It is realistic to think that the building 
or land will continue to be used in a 
way which will further the social well-
being and social interests of the 
community within the next 5 years? 

Yes 

This facility intends to 
continue for the 
foreseeable future; the 
organisation has a five-
year strategic plan.  

Yes 

 
 

3.4.3 Accordingly, Council’s Officers have assessed that the criteria for listing have been 
met and recommend that part of Denholme Community Library  edged red on the 
plans attached (Appendix 2) is listed as an Asset of Community Value. 

 
3.5 Appeals & Listing  
 
3.5.1 Property owners (but not occupiers) may appeal against the Council’s decision to 

list their property as an asset of community value. In the first instance the property 
owner should ask the Council to review its decision. If the Council upholds its 
decision to list, the owner may appeal to the First Tier Tribunal.  

 
3.5.2 There is no provision within the Act for nominators to challenge a decision not to list 
 a property or decision to remove a property from the list following a review. 
 However, the Council will be required to provide nominators with reasons why their 
 application is unsuccessful or why a property has been removed from the list. 
 

Page 26



 
 

 

3.5.3 As mentioned at 3.1.3 above the listing of land or property as an Asset of 
 Community Value does not prevent a land owner from changing the use of the 
 listed asset. The Act provides that a listed asset can be removed from the list if the 
 nature of the asset changes so that it is unrealistic to expect it to be used for social, 
 sporting, environmental benefits in the near future. An example of substantial 
 change would be the progression of development works. 
 
3.5.4 The listing of an asset is not retrospective and has no effect on binding agreements 
 for sale already in place at the date of listing. 
 
4. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL  
 
4.1  None.  

  
4.2  A property owner has a right to compensation for losses incurred as a result of 

listing.   
 
5. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 
5.1  None 
 
6. LEGAL APPRAISAL  
 
6.1  Land or property may only be listed as an Asset of Community Value where it 

meets the criteria and definitions set out in the Localism Act 2011. 
 
6.2  Property owners may appeal against the decision to list their property as an Asset 

of Community Value. In the first instance the decision to list the property will be 
subject to internal review within the council. If the council upholds the decision to 
list, the owner may appeal to the First Tier Tribunal. 

 
7. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY  
 
 None 
 
7.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS  
 
 None 
 
7.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 
 None 
 
7.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS  
 
 None 
 
7.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT  

Page 27



 
 

 

 
 None 
 
7.6 TRADE UNION 
 
 None 

 
7.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 
 None 
 
8. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS  
 
 None. 
 
9. OPTIONS 
 
9.1 Option 1: Accept the nomination on the grounds that it meets the criteria and 

definition of an Asset of Community Value as set out in the Localism Act 2011.  
 
9.2 Option 2:  Reject the nomination on the grounds that it does not meet the criteria    

and definition of an Asset of Community Value as set out in the Localism Act 2011. 
 
9.3 Option 1  is the preferred option as the nominated asset does meet the criteria for 

listing set out in the Act. 
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Recommended -  
 

That in accordance with Option 1, the nomination of part of the property known as 
Denholme Community Library, Mechanics Institute, Main Road, Denholme BD13 
4BL as an Asset of Community Value is accepted. 

 
11. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 - Nomination Form 
 
Appendix 2 – Plans 

  
12. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS  
 
 Report to the Executive meeting of 6th November 2012; The Localism Act 2011 – 
 The Community Right to Bid. 

Page 28



Appendix 1

Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Co
urt

Fo
res

ter

Library

A 6
29

MILTON STREET

KNOWLES ST

SCHOOL STREET

CLAPHAM STREET

BUCK STREET

STRADMORE ROAD

11

1

17

2
10

4

5351

48

4543 40

38

36
7

8

16
15

14
13

12

(PH
)

1 to 24

41a

14

2

11

12

4

8

7

10

1

10

13

10

1

8
10

4

1

17

15
13

Ü

ACV 0064 - Denholme Library

© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey 0100019304
Date: 17/01/20181:500

Scale at A4

 Appendix 2

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

Report of the Strategic Director Children’s Service s to 
the meeting of Shipley Area Committee to be held on  
14 February 2018 
 

AA 
Subject:   
Proposal for the restructure of Special Educational  Needs and disabilities (SEND) 
Specialist Teaching Support Services for children a nd young people with SEND 
 
Summary statement: 
The report presents the revised proposed model for the restructuring of SEND 
Specialist Teaching Support Services for children a nd young people with SEND 
to improve their educational outcomes.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Michael Jameson 
Strategic Director 

Portfolio:   
 
Education, Employment and Skills 
 

Report Contact:   
Judith Kirk – Deputy Director 
Phone: (01274) 439255 
E-mail: judith.kirk@bradford.gov.uk 

Overview & Scrutiny Area:  
 
Children’s Services 

Page 39

Agenda Item 9/



 
 

1.0   SUMMARY 
 

1.1 The report presented to Executive on the 9 January 2018 followed the previous 
report presented to Executive on 20 June 2017. 
  

1.2 Children’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be presented with the contents 
of the report to Executive of the 9 January 2018 for their comment on the 14 
February 2018.  
 

1.3 Each of the five  Area Committee’s will also be presented with the contents of the 
report to Executive of the 9 January 2018 for their comment. This commenced 
with a report to Keighley Area Committee on the 1 February  and concludes  with 
a report to Bradford West Area Committee on the 28 February 2018.  
 

1.4 On 20 June 2017, Executive agreed to a period of consultation until 31 August 
2017 with a range of stakeholders on the proposed remodelling of SEND 
services for children and young people from ages 0-25. 
 

1.5 As a result of feedback and responses during this period of consultation, 
particularly from schools, internal staff teams and national organisations 
representing children and young people with sensory impairment, the proposals 
in the previous report to Executive have been changed. 
 

1.6 The changes take account of the feedback received in order to: 
 

• Ensure that the proposals improve the quality of support and provision for all 
SEND pupils and meet the SEN Improvement Test (See Appendix 1); 

• Ensure that the funding from the Dedicated Schools Grant High Needs Block 
(HNB) is used effectively and efficiently to meet the full range of SEND needs 
across the  0-25 years age range; 

• Specifically, we need an option which both reduces pressure on the High 
Needs Block and  increases specialist places. 
 

1.7 As a result of the announcement in September 2017 about the new National 
Funding Formula (NFF) which the government is introducing from April 2018, 
which provides funding for children and young people with SEND. Bradford 
should have gained £15m but under these new proposals Bradford will only gain 
£7.5m. The impact of this is significant on the High Needs Block with the HNB 
spending forecasted to exceed what is available by approximately £2m per year 
for the next four years.   
 

Page 40



 
 

1.8 Our HNB spending levels are forecasted to exceed the amount that is allocated 
to spend by approximately £2m per year for the next four years. The proposed 
changes in this report sit alongside other wider proposed solutions to address the 
forecasted pressures on the HNB. These wider plans include: reviewing the top 
up funding for places for pupils without an Education, Health and Care Plan 
(EHCP) in our Pupil Referral Units and reviewing the timeline for the increase in 
specialist places across the District. 

 
1.9 We need to reduce the pressures on the HNB, deliver further financial savings, 

continue to fund and deliver SEND teaching and support services to children and 
young people, whilst having to increase the number of specialist places to meet 
the rising demand and complexity of children and young people with SEND in 
Bradford.  
 

1.10 The changes to the National Funding Formula have also placed significant 
pressure on schools’ budgets and may make it more difficult for schools to buy 
services. 

 
1.11 In light of the consultation feedback received, the proposed model made 

previously to Executive on the 20 June 2017 has been reviewed and a number of 
options have been considered and are set out in this report.  We have reviewed 
and replaced the previous model presented because: 

• Schools told us that they would struggle to pay for  the 100% traded services for 
school aged children; 

• Our parents were concerned that school aged and post-16 children and young 
people were being left without a funded service as all of the funding from the 
HNB was being used for the 0-5+ years model; 

• Organisations told us that the funding of the model was not fair and equitable and 
could risk losing SEND services and specialisms in the District and could 
jeopardise the delivery of our statutory duties under the SEND Code of Practice; 

• Parents and young people told us that more support is needed to help young 
people aged 16 – 25 years into training and work.   
 

1.12 The previous model put before the Council Executive in June 2017 included two 
Early Years SEND Centres of Excellence for children 0-5+ years which were to 
be fully funded by the High Needs Block; and a Specialist Teaching Support 
Service to support the full range of special educational needs and disabilities for 
children and young people from the ages 5 – 16 years which was to be 100% 
traded.  The funding for this model was reviewed in the light of the consultation 
and the other funding changes under the National Funding Formula; as a result 
this model was no longer financially viable.  

Page 41



 
 

 
1.13 The Executive report of the 9 January 2018 detailed a preferred new model 

(Option 3) which restructures the current SEND specialist teaching support 
services into a 0-25 Inclusive Education Service for children and young people 
from 0-25 years of age as outlined in the SEND Code of Practice. This new 
service will have two teams who will work closely together to deliver support 
through a single referral system; a team to support high occurring needs such as 
autism, learning needs and social, emotional and mental health needs; and a 
team who will support low occurring needs such as hearing impairment, visual 
impairment, multi-sensory impairment and physical and medical needs.  
 

1.14 In order to fund the increase in specialist places that are required across the 
District, and make savings to reduce the increasing pressure on the HNB, both 
these teams would have an element of High Needs Block funding but will also 
need to generate some income through the trading/selling of some of their 
services to schools.  This model of support will be 70% funded from the high 
needs block and 30% traded and will be more sustainable; it also includes 
support for young people 16 – 25 years of age which was feedback by young 
people, parents and organisations during the previous consultation in summer 
2017.. 
 

1.15 The proposed preferred option in the report would also align to the four localities 
proposed in the Prevention and Early Help model agreed for consultation by the 
Council’s Executive on 7 November 2017.  
 

1.16 Approval was sought and received from Executive on the 9 January 2018 to 
formally consult on the revised proposed preferred option for the transformation 
of SEND Teaching and Support Services for children and young people aged 0-
25 years from 17 January 2018 to 28 February 2018.  
 

 

2. BACKGROUND 
 

2.1 Bradford is one of the youngest populations in the country. We have a growing 
population of children and young people in Bradford and a growing population of 
children and young people with SEND. 

 
2.2 The complexity of special needs in Bradford is also increasing and, as a result, 

there is a need for more specialist places.  
 
2.3 We have an increasing number of referrals for Education, Health and Care 

assessments (EHCA): 

Page 42



 
 

 
Year 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 

No of referrals 
for EHCA 

520 735 843 

 
2.4 The announcement by the Department for Education on 14 September 2017 on 

the new National Funding Formula means that there will be significant pressure 
on our High Needs Block.  The way that the funding has been calculated for 
Bradford means that we do not get as much funding as we had expected 
according to the formula outlined in the consultation papers.  
 

2.5 Alongside the challenging financial climate, we also have the opportunity to 
transform the way SEND teaching and support services and provision are 
delivered in Bradford. The preferred model is driven by our vision to support 
children, young people and families as early as possible, build independence and 
so also reduce costly intervention later in the life of a child or young person. 
 

2.6 In order to do this we need to ensure that a range of specialist services are 
available across the District for children and young people with SEND and that 
we meet the needs of the SEN Improvement Test (see Appendix 1).  Local 
authorities proposing to make changes are required to demonstrate that the 
proposed changes are likely to lead to improvement in the standard, quality 
and/or range of educational provision for children with special educational needs 
and disabilities. 
 

2.7 The proposal is also based on the evidence and findings of the SEND Strategic 
Review in Bradford 2016 
 https://localoffer.bradford.gov.uk/Content.aspx?mid=553. 
 

2.8 Messages from engagement and consultation  
 

2.9 Between 2 May 2017 until 6 June 2017, Children’s Services undertook a period 
of engagement on proposals to remodel SEND services 0-25. This was then 
followed by consultation from 26 June 2017 to 31 August 2017. 
 

2.10 This included consultation and feedback from: 
 

• Parents and Carers Forum 
• Head teachers 
• SEND Strategic Partnership 
• Elected members 

Page 43



 
 

• Managers and teams in Children’s Services  
• Health and Well-Being Board  
• The Schools Forum 

 
2.11 This was promoted through the Local Offer website, Bradford Schools Online 

(BSO), the Council’s consultation website, the SEND summer conference 2017 
and attendance at events such as the Head teachers’ briefings, Schools Forum, 
partnership meetings such as the Integrated Early Years Strategy Group, the 
SEND Strategic Partnership, and the Bradford Primary Improvement Partnership 
(BPIP). 
 

2.12 An online survey to schools was also undertaken in the 2017 summer term about 
the work of the specialist teaching support services. Of the 134 responses 99% 
had received support from the services and would like this to continue. Of the 
117 schools who responded to this question – ‘Did the support have a positive 
outcome for the school/child?’ 96% (112) responded ‘Yes’.  
 

2.13 Note: the consultation regarding the expansion of specialist places for children 
and young people with SEND (including those for young children under five years 
of age) is in the paper – ‘Ensuring the sufficiency of specialist places acro ss 
the Bradford District for children and young people  with Special Needs and 
Disabilities (SEND).’  Please follow this link for these consultation documents 
from early November. 

 
• www.bradford.gov.uk/consultations 
• https://bso.bradford.gov.uk 
• https://localoffer.bradford.gov.uk/ - Bradford SEND Local Offer 

This paper details the second of the three consultations that are running alongside each 
other – 
 

1. To increase the number of specialist places for children and young people 
with SEND 

2. The 0-25 Transformation of Specialist Teaching Support Services 
3. Prevention and Early Help 

Page 44



 
 

 
 

3. OPTIONS AND PREFERRED MODEL 
 

3.1 For teams in scope of these options please see Appendix 2. 
3.2 Option 1 – Remain with the same specialist teaching  support services and 

teams and spread the required savings across these teams. This option 
would mean staff reductions of between 35-40* FTE.  
*This is based on the average cost of a member of staff being £36,000 

 
3.3  Under this option, it was proposed that the SEND teaching and support services 

remain in place as presently - centrally provided and funded through the High 
Needs Block (HNB). The services would need to be reduced in size to meet the 
financial savings required to reduce the pressure on the HNB.  
 

3.4 The current spend on specialist teaching and support services is £4.725m. These 
services cover Cognition and Learning, Autism, Physical and Medical, Sensory 
Service, 0-7 Early Years SEND; the Early Years Intervention Team and Teaching 
Support Services administration services and resourced provisions.  
 

3.5 Of the £4.725m, £4.321m is currently spent on centrally managed services and 
£0.404m on enhancing the offer and provision for young children with SEND. 
 

3.6 HNB spending is currently forecasted to exceed our HNB allocation by 
approximately £2m per year for the next four years. As a result, there is a need to 
implement a number of significant structural solutions to reduce the growth of a 
significant deficit in the HNB. The options in this paper are one of a number of 
other solutions needed to reduce this pressure.  

Page 45



 
 

Option One  
Pros:  Cons:  
Team remain working as they 
currently do and systems remain 
relatively stable and are familiar to 
children, schools and families. 
 

To reduce the pressure on the HNB whilst 
retaining the teams as they currently are 
would mean significant staff reductions 
across all of the existing teams. This would 
most likely result in a lack of capacity to 
meet need across all areas of SEND, a 
lack of a timely response to high rates of 
referrals and an inability to meet our 
statutory duties for both low and high 
incidence (occurring) special needs. 
 
Staff reductions would lead to some 
disruptions for service users.  
 
Would not meet the SEN Improvement 
Test. 
 
Is not efficient, as schools currently have 
to enter into separate service level 
agreements with different teams within 
specialist teaching and support services. 
 
There is duplication of service support 
functions e.g. administration. 
 
It does not provide an integrated approach 
for children, young people and their 
families. 
 

This was not the preferred option because the reduction in staff would lead to a 
less co-ordinated and effective level of service to children, schools and families 
and not meet the requirements of the SEN Improvement Test. 

 
3.7  Option 2 – there are three main elements to this proposed option: 
 

• Two Early Years SEND Centres of Excellence to meet the needs of 
children up to the age of five years; 

• Teaching Support Services for high incidence or occurring  SEND into an 
Integrated Specialist Teaching Support Service for children and young 
people aged 5-16 years of age; 

• Teaching Support Services for low occurring SEND into a Sensory and 
Physical Needs team for children and young people aged 5-16 years of 
age.  

Page 46



 
 

This option would mean potential staff reductions o f between 10-12 FTE. 
 

3.8 This option would also require that all three elements of the model would be 
partly funded from the High Needs Block and teams would also be required to 
sell some of their services to generate an income. 
 

3.9 Option 2 was a revision of the preferred option presented to Council’s Executive 
on 20 June 2017 and subject to initial consultation 26 June until 31 August 2017. 
The changes to the organisation and staffing of the teams and proposed level of 
funding allocated to the teams was changed in line with feedback received 
between 26 June 2017 and 31 August 2017. 

 
3.10 Under this revised option, it was proposed that the district would be divided into 

two areas. In each locality there would be a SEND Early Years Centres of 
Excellence which would be co-located with one of the four Enhanced Early 
Years Specialist Provisions which provide early years places for young children 
with SEND.  These are based at: 

 
• Abbey Green Nursery School 
• Canterbury Nursery School 
• St Edmunds Nursery School 
• Strong Close Nursery School 

 
NB. Because of the need to increase the number of specialist places, the additional 
specialist early years places created at these four nursery schools are included in a 
separate consultation see above 2.13.  The cost for these places is £1,006, 672; see 
table in 5.1. 
 

 

Page 47



 
 

3.11  The SEND Early Years Centres of Excellence would comprise a range of SEND 
specialist practitioners, for example, specialist teachers of autism, cognition and 
learning and behaviour, portage home visitors and Equality and Access 
(Inclusion) Officers. They would provide consultation; support, training and 
outreach work for all SEND early years children across all types of early years 
settings within the locality in addition to those accessing the specialist places in 
the four nursery schools noted above. 

 
3.12 To be able to fund the required increase in early years specialist places (an 

additional £1,006,672 from the High Needs Block), the proposed SEND Early 
Years Centres of Excellence would need to have a reduced staffing model and 
have an element of income generation through selling some of their services to 
providers/settings/schools. This was revised in light of the announcement on the 
National Funding Formula and would require 80% funding through the HNB and 
20% traded/income generation.  

 
3.13 There would need to be a reduction in the number of posts contained within the 

original proposal put to the Executive on 20 June 2017.  In total this reduction 
would be between10-12 FTEs. 

 
3.14 In addition to the SEND Early Years Centres of Excellence for young children, 

Option 2 would also include: 
  

• A SEND Teaching Support Service for 5-16 year-olds for high occurring 
SEND needs 

•  Creation of a new low occurring SEND Teaching Support Service – Sensory 
and Physical Needs 

 
 

Page 48



 
 

A SEND Teaching 
Support Service for 5-
16 year-olds for High 
Occurring  SEND 
 
Under this Option 2, the 
service would be partly 
funded from the HNB 
(60%) and would need to 
generate 40% of their 
total costs by selling 
services. 
 

• Autism 
• Cognition and 

Learning 
• Social, Emotional and 

Mental Health 

Team would comprise: 
 
• Head of Service and 

Deputy Head of 
Service/Specialist 
Teacher 

• Specialist Teachers: 
• Cognition and 

Learning 
• SEMH 
• Autism 

• Peripatetic Specialist 
practitioners 

• Business/Finance/data/a
dmin 

Sensory and Physical 
Needs Team: Low 
Occurring SEND 
 
Revised financial 
modelling was based on 
a 70% funded model 
from the HNB and 30% 
on an income generated 
model through selling 
some of their services to 
schools. 
 
 

• Hearing Impaired, 
Visually Impaired and 
Multi-Sensory 
Impairment 

• Physical and Medical 

 

Team would comprise: 
 
• Head of Service  
• Team Leader Support 

Team for Deaf children   
• Business Support 
• Visual Impairment (VI) 

Team 

 
• Support Team for Deaf 

Children 
• Physical and Medical 

Specialist Teachers   

 
 
 

Option Two  
Pros:  Cons:  
This option would: 
 
Provide dedicated support to 
children 0-5 years; 
 
Enable teams to work more closely 
with the children, families and staff 
in the newly created specialist 

Overall, this option would only generate a 
small saving from the HNB of 
approximately £3,500 per annum as we 
would have to: 
- provide HNB funding for the increased 

number of specialist places that we require 
at a cost of £1,006,672;  

- fund the low incidence team (70% from the 

Page 49



 
 

early years SEND  places in the 
four nursery schools; 
 
Would provide some HNB funding 
for the integrated teaching team to 
work with children 5 -16 years of 
age. 
 
Would reduce the amount of 
income that the sensory team 
would need to generate based on 
the original proposals in the 
Executive paper of 20 June which 
was for the service to be 50% 
funded through the HNB and 50% 
income generating.  

HNB rather than the original proposal of 
50%) and the low incidence team would 
have to generate an income of 30%;  

- fund the high incidence team (funded 60% 
from the HNB instead of 0% funding from 
the HNB under the previous proposals) 
and the team would have to generate an 
income of 40%.  

This would increase pressure overall on 
the HNB and lead to a growing and 
significant deficit. 

The reductions in staffing in the two 
Centres of Excellence would only provide 
minimal savings and, in order to provide a 
viable service staffing could not 
realistically fall below this level. 
 
The Centres of Excellence would have to 
generate 20% of their funding through 
selling some of their services. 

This was not the preferred option because it would not allow the Council to 
make the savings required to provide extra specialist places for young children 
for which there is an increasing demand. This would increase the pressure on 
the HNB and lead to a growing and significant deficit. 

 
 
3.15 Option 3 – preferred proposed option – 0-25 SEND I nclusive Education 

Service there are two elements to this option: 
 

• The creation of an integrated 0-25 years high incidence/high occurring SEND 
teaching support service to support children and young people who have 
autism, additional learning needs and difficulties and social and emotional 
and mental health needs; 

 
AND 

•  The creation of a new low incidence/low occurring  0-25 years SEND 
Teaching Support Service to support children and young people with hearing 
impairment, visual impairment, multi-sensory impairment and physical and 
medical needs. 

 
 
This option would mean potential staff reductions o f between 25-30 FTE. 

 

Page 50



 
 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



 
 

0-25 SEND Inclusive 
Education Service 
made up of 2 teams: 
 
High 
incidence/occurring 
special needs)  
 
This team would align to  
work across the areas 
proposed in the 
Prevention and Early 
Help consultation: 
 

• Keighley/Shipley 
• East 
• West 
• South 

• Autism 
• Cognition and 

Learning 
• Social, Emotional and 

Mental Health 

Team would comprise of:  
 
• Service Manager 
• Four Locality Leads 

(0.5 management 
role with  0.5 
Specialist teaching 
role) 

• Specialist Teachers 
• Peripatetic Specialist 

Practitioners 
• Portage Home 

Visitors including one 
Senior Portage Home 
Visitor  

• Early Years Specialist 
Practitioners 

• Post-16 Transition 
Officers 

• Equality and Access 
(Inclusion)  Officers 

• Business/Finance/ad
min 
 

Sensory and Physical 
Needs Team: for low 
Incidence/occurring 
SEND.  
 
Revised financial 
modelling has been 
based on a 70% funded 
model from the HNB and 
30% on an income 
generated model through 
selling some of their 
services to schools. 
 
 

• Hearing Impaired, 
Visually Impaired and 
Multi-Sensory 
Impairment 

• Physical and medical 

 

Team would comprise: 
 
• Head of Service  
• Team Leader 

Business Support  
• Visual Impairment 

Team 
- Specialist 

teachers  
- Specialist 

Practitioner  
- Technical 

Support  
- Habilitation 

Officers  
• Support Team for 

Deaf Children 
- Specialist 

Teachers of 
the deaf  

Page 52



 
 

- Multi-Sensory 
Impairment 
teacher 

- Audiologist  
- Audiology 

officer 
- Specialist 

practitioners  
- Deaf Instructor 

• Physical and Medical 
Specialist Teachers    

 
3.16 The two teams within the new model will work closely together and will have a 
single point of referral into the support to simplify the process for families and schools 
and external agencies. 
 
3.17 There is the potential that the work of these teams can align to the four locality 
model in the Prevention and Early Help preferred option currently under consultation. 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



 
 

Option Three  
Pros:  Cons:  
Create one integrated team of 
specialists supporting children and 
young people from 0-25 years of age. 
 
Better support transitions for example 
from home or early years settings into 
schools, both primary, secondary and 
Special and then into post -16 
education, provision and 
apprenticeships and into employment 
 
Reduce the number of 
staff/professionals that families with 
children with SEND and schools have 
to interact with and help to simplify and 
streamline the referral process through 
one single point of contact.   
 
Allow schools to enter into one service 
level agreement to meet the needs of 
children and young people with the 
whole service rather than separate 
teams, right through to 25 years of 
age. 
 
Reduce duplication of service support 
functions, for example of 
administration and financial support 
and help to build a more responsive, 
timely and cost efficient service. 
 

There would be a reduction in the 
number of specialist teachers and 
specialist practitioners employed by 
the LA to offer support to children, 
schools and families. 
 
The team will need to generate an 
income of 30% of the overall cost of 
the service to maintain or sustain this 
proposed level of staffing.  

This is the preferred option because it integrates specialist teaching and support 
staff  into two teams (High and Low Incidence)  which are potentially more viable 
and will help to retain specialisms within the district which will together provide a 
prompt and more consistent support to children, young people aged 0-25 years 
and their families and schools and better support transitions between home, 
school and employment and training 
 

 
3.18   This option would also generate greater net savings from the HNB of £0.774m 

and would reduce some of the pressure on the HNB. The overall spend on 
teaching support services would reduce from the current £4.725m to £2.945m 
whilst also providing the £1.006m for the additional specialist early years SEND 
places.  

 

Page 54



 
 

 
4. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 

 
4.1  This proposal sits alongside those proposals for Prevention and Early Help and 

the consultation on the expansion of specialist places – ‘Ensuring the sufficiency 
of specialist places across the Bradford District for children and young people 
with Special Needs and Disabilities (SEND)’. 

 

 
5. FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL 

 
5.1 Substantial savings must be made from the High Needs Block and the table 

below identifies the savings from each option.  The options costed below show 
current spend on the specialist teaching support services (Column 1).  In Option 
2 (Column 3) and the preferred Option 3 (Column 4) £1,006,672 will be needed 
to fund the additional specialist early places and £170,000 will be used to 
continue to fund the Early Years SEN Assessment Team who will move into a 0-
25 SEN Assessment Team (not part of this consultation). 

 
 
 
 

 
Column 1  Column 2  Column 3  Column 4  

  

Current 
2017/18 

HNB Spend  

Option 2 
Costs for 

original 
model  

Option 2    
Costs of 

the 
reworked 

model  

Option 3        
Cost of 

the 
preferred 

model  
Costs of Specialist Teaching 
Support Services 4,725,725 2885,761 3,545,627 2,774,792 
Early Years - Places   1,006,672 1,006,672 1,006,672 
Costs of SEN Assessment 
Team  170,000 170,000 170,000 
Total  4,725,725 4,062,432 4,722,299 3,951,464 

 
 
5.2  As the preferred option would be a significant programme of change, additional 

dedicated resource and support will be required from a range of other council 
services and teams including Human Resources, Financial and Legal Services, 
Communications and Workforce Development. There has been £200k allocated 
from the Transformation Fund to support the Early Help and SEND 
Transformation programme. 

 

Page 55



 
 

5.3 Any redundancy costs that arise from these proposals will be covered through 
the DSG – High Needs Block. 

 

 
6. RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES 
 
6.1  Unless there is a radical change in the way that SEND Teaching and Support 

Services are delivered and make a significant contribution to savings required 
from the High Needs Block the pressure on the HNB will continue. Spending is 
currently forecasted to exceed our allocation by approximately £2m a year for the 
next four years. The trajectory is that by 2021/22 the HNB will have a forecasted 
deficit of £9.2m. 

 
6.2 To deliver this programme of change requires delivery at considerable pace and 

a further period of formal consultation with children, young people, families and 
partners, workforce and other interested parties.  

 
 
7. LEGAL APPRAISAL  
 
7.1 The SEND Code of Practice 2015 sets out statutory guidance that local 

authorities, education settings and health bodies must take into account  when  
carrying out their respective duties in respect of children and young people aged 
0-25 years. 

 
7.2 The Local Authority has a duty to identify, assess and make provision to meet the 

special educational and wider needs of children within its area and to monitor 
progress against outcomes. From September 2014 all new statutory 
assessments and Plans must consider educational, health and care needs, 
outcomes and appropriate provision. 

 
7.3 Local authorities are expected to take into account the views of children, young 

people and their parents when proposing changes to any SEN provision and 
should identify the specific educational benefits and improvements in provision 
which will flow from the proposals.  

 
7.4 One of the initial factors for consideration of any changes to SEN provision for a 

local authority is to ensure that pupils will have access to appropriately trained 
staff and access to specialist support and advice. 

 
7.5 The SEND Code of Practice January 2015 provides that when considering any 

reorganisation of special educational needs provision that the Local Authority 
must make it clear how they are satisfied that the proposed alternative 
arrangements are likely to lead to improvements in the standard, quality and/or 
range of educational provision for SEN (see Appendix 1 for the SEN 
Improvement Test). 

Page 56



 
 

 
7.6 The Local Authority must have regard to its public sector equality duties under 

section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 when exercising its functions and making 
any decisions.  The Local Authority must carry out an Equalities Impact 
Assessment to enable intelligent consideration of the proposals. The Local 
Authority must have due regard to the information in the Equalities Impact 
Assessment in making the decision to commence consultation on these 
proposals. 

 
7.7 Consultation with employees in relation to any proposed changes will follow 

procedures set out in ‘Managing Workforce Change’. 
 
7.8 In circumstances where there is no prescribed consultation period or prescribed 

statutory process the Local Authority should consult interested parties in 
developing their proposals and before publication or determination of those 
proposals as part of their duty to act rationally and to take account of all relevant 
considerations. Any responses received to the consultation should be considered 
and the Local Authority must have regard to its Public Sector Equality Duty 
before any decision is taken to implement the proposals. 

 
7.9 Consultation must take place with all interested parties when proposals are still at 

a formative stage, sufficient reasons must be put forward for the proposal to 
allow for intelligent consideration and response. Adequate time must also be 
given for consideration and to respond to the consultation and conscientious 
account must be taken of responses when a decision is made.  Whilst all options 
do not have to be consulted upon they must be sufficiently clear to enable 
consultees to understand the proposals. 

 
7.10 Consultation must be easily understandable by those most likely to be affected 

by the proposed changes.  The language should not be technical and what is 
being proposed and the impact of the proposals must be in plain English. 

 
 
8.  OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 EQUALITY & DIVERSITY  
 
8.1.1 The Local Authority must not discriminate directly or indirectly against any group 

or individual and is required to foster good relations. 
 
8.1.2 An Equalities Impact Assessment for the preferred proposed Option 3 is attached 

as Appendix 3. 
 
8.2 SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS  
 

There are no direct sustainability implications arising from this report. Any 
development or changes to buildings undertaken as a result of these proposals 
will be undertaken in a sustainable way which minimises the future impact of the 

Page 57



 
 

Local Authority’s carbon footprint. 

 
8.3 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS 
 

The proposals would not impact on gas emissions. 

 
8.4 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS  
 

There are no direct community safety implications arising from this report. 
 

8.5 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT  
 
 There are no direct Human Rights implications arising from this report. 
 
8.6 TRADE UNION  
 
8.6.1  This proposal was presented at Children’s OJC Level 2 on 7 December 2017. 
 
8.6.2 The trade unions will be fully consulted on the proposals and meetings are 

scheduled with the Trade Unions on the proposals and their feedback will be 
incorporated into future reports to Executive.  Under these proposals there would 
be staffing reductions across all of the options considered. 

 

Option Reduction in 

pressure on HNB 
Current FTE staffing  FTE Staff reductions 

Option 1 £660k 108 - 35 to 40 

Option 2 £3.5k 108 - 10 to 12 

Option 3 £770k 108 - 25 to 30 

 

 
 
8.7 WARD IMPLICATIONS 
 

Ward Councillors will be formally consulted upon about the proposals affecting 
their wards. 

 
9. NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS  
 
 None. 
 
 

Page 58



 
 

10. OPTIONS 
 
10.1 That the committee considers the report and makes comments 

 

11. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

11.1 Shipley Area Committee to note the details of this report and comment.  
 
 

12. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1:  The SEN Improvement Test for preferred Option 3 
Appendix 2:   Staff in scope 
Appendix 3:  The Equality Impact Assessment 
Appendix 4:   Consultation Plan 
 

 
13. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS  

• SEND Code of Practice 
• Bradford Council Plan 2016 - 2020 – A Great Start and Good Schools for all 

our Children 
• Bradford Children, Young People and Families Plan 2016-2020  
• The Education Covenant 2017-2020  
• Directors of Children’s Services: Roles and Responsibilities (2013)  

 
 

  

Page 59



 
 

Appendix 1 - the SEN Improvement Test for preferred  Option 3 
 
Based on preferred Option 3 : Changes to the way in which specialist teaching 
support services are delivered for children and you ng people with special 
educational needs and disabilities (SEND) 
 
This document demonstrates how the preferred proposal of Option 3 will improve the 
way in which the Local Authority delivers support to SEND children and young people 
through the teaching support services to meet the requirements of the SEN 
Improvement Test. 
 
The SEN Improvement Test  
 
Any local authority proposing to make changes to schools providing places for children 
and young people with any kind of Special Educational Needs or Disabilities (SEND), 
including Social Emotional and Mental Health Needs (SEMH), is required by the 
Department for Education (DfE) to show that the proposed changes to provision meet 
the SEN Improvement Test and are able to demonstrate that the proposed 
arrangements are likely to lead to improvement in the standard, quality and/or range of 
educational provision for children with special educational needs and disabilities. 
 
The required improvements of the test which are rel evant to these proposals are 
as follows: 
 
1. Improved access to education and associated serv ices including the 

curriculum, wider school activities, facilities and  equipment with reference to 
the Local Authority’s Accessibility Strategy. 

 
SEND and Behaviour Services will continue to meet the requirements of the 
Government’s inclusion agenda.  It will ensure a flexible continuum of provision for 
pupils with a range of special educational needs and disabilities, according to the needs 
of individual children. 
 
The reorganisation of the teams around an area-based model will ensure that children 
and families, schools and settings will have easier access to SEND associated services 
within the communities that they live.  The alignment with the consultation models being 
proposed around Prevention and Early Help will increase communication and joint 
working with the range of professionals that can form a ‘team around the child’. 
 
The proposals will, therefore, lead to improved access to education and associated 
services including the curriculum, and wider school activities, while providing improved 
facilities and equipment. 
 
The overall aims of Bradford’s Accessibility Strategy and the way they will be met are as 
follows: 
 

Page 60



 
 

o Curriculum: Increasing the extent to which disabled pupils or prospective pupils 
can participate in the curriculum.   
Due to the teams being co-located within areas with Prevention and Early Help 
these proposals will deliver advantages and improvements for the children and 
young people with SEND across all settings as their access to the specialist 
support services will be easier within their local community 

 
o Physicality: Improving the physical environment of schools through targeted 

specialist advice and support provided by the specialist integrated teams about 
the environment will increase the extent to which disabled pupils can make 
progress with their learning and improve their outcomes. 
 

o Information: Improving the provision of information in a wide range of formats for 
disabled pupils.   
Local area support and information in a wide variety of formats on associated 
services, activities and help can be tailored to the communities that children and 
families live in and so provided greater knowledge and access and because of 
the integration of the SEND specialist teams and the alignment to Prevention and 
Early Help communications and information should be more streamlined, joined 
up, with a reduction in duplication and information overload by separate teams.  

 
2. Improved access to specialist staff, both educat ion and other professionals, 

including external support and outreach services 
 
The creation of two 0-25 teams under one SEND service – the SEND Inclusive 
Education Service which would include high incidence SEND along with Early Years 
specialists, Portage and post -16 personal advisers; and one for low incidence SEND,  
rather than the current structure of a number of separate teams with their own 
administration, financial support and management in two different service areas will 
provide a more joined up, district wide approach to raising outcomes of SEND children 
and young people from birth to 25 years of age across the district.  
 
The proposed SEND Inclusive Education Service will service four geographical areas 
and be aligned to the proposals for four teams in Prevention and Early Help. This will 
mean services are closer to the communities which they serve, there will be a much 
clearer pathway for any referrals, there will be better communications and shared 
systems between services so they can join their offer up for children, young people and 
families and make them more efficient and seamless.  Families, schools and other 
service users should know more clearly who the teams are and who they need to 
contact and should get a more timely response. 
 
The creation of 0-25 specialist teams also means that children and young people will 
benefit from the continued support of the full range of training and qualified specialist 
staff from birth, through education and careers and transition support into further 
education and employment.    
 
 

Page 61



 
 

3. Confirmation of how the proposals will be funded  and the planning staffing 
arrangements put in place 

 
Both the proposed SEND Inclusive Education Service and the Sensory and Physical 
Needs (Low Incidence) Service will be funded from the high needs block for 70% of the 
total cost of the teams.  Each team will need to sell some of their services to generate 
an income of 30% of the overall cost of the team.  This 30% of income will be generated 
through delivering consultancy, training, some equipment and resources to support 
schools, settings and colleges to deliver a high quality offer to all SEND children and 
young people.  

 
The staffing for the teams will comprise the majority of the staff that are currently 
employed within the teaching support teams.  These comprise: 
 

• Autism Team 
• Cognition and Learning Team 
• Social, Emotional and Behavioural Difficulties (SEBD) Team 
• Physical and Medical Team 
• Sensory Team (which covers hearing and visual impairment and multi-sensory 

impairment). 
• Portage  
• Early Years Intervention Team 
• 0-7 SEND team 

  

Page 62



 
 

Appendix 2 - staff in scope 
 
Specialist teaching and support teams  Staff in scope FTE 
Cognition and Learning 11.6 
Autism 11.0 
BESD 13.5 
Physical and Medical 4.0 
Sensory Outreach team 27.6 
0-7 SEND 22.0 
Early Years Intervention Team (excluding assessment 
team) 

18.1 

Numbers in scope for consultation  108* 
 (9 vacancies)  
 

• * rounded 

 

P
age 63



 
 

Appendix 3 - Equality Impact Assessment Form  
                       
Department Education, Employment and 

Skills 
Version no Final draft 

Assessed by Lynn Donohue and Angela 
Spencer-Brooke 

Date created First draft 

Approved by Judith Kirk Date approved 24.10.17 

Updated by Lynn Donohue Date updated 04.12.17 

Final approval Judith Kirk Date signed off 05.12.17 

 
 
The Equality Act 2010 requires the Council to have due regard to the need to  

• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation; 

• advance equality of opportunity between different groups; and 

• foster good relations between different groups 
 

Section 1: What is being assessed? 
 
1.1 Name of proposal to be assessed. 

 
Transformation of the 0-25 SEND specialist teaching and support services specifically 
under consideration is: 
 
Preferred Option 3, which proposes to create two interdependent combined specialist 
teams; one Integrated SEND Inclusive Education Service which includes specialists for 
High Incidence SEND as well as those for Early Years and Post-16 for children and 
young people aged 0-25 years of age and one for Low Incidence SEND for children and 
young people aged 0-25 years of age. These two teams will work closely together to 
deliver advice, training and support to children and young people from birth to 25 (where 
required).   
 
The proposals have been reviewed and revised in the light of feedback received during 
a consultation period which ran until 31 August 2017. It has been agreed that these 
revised proposals will be presented to the Council Executive to ask them to agree to a 
further period of consultation to ensure that meaningful engagement with all 
stakeholders can now be undertaken on the preferred option 3.  
 
1.2 Describe the proposal under assessment and what  change it would result 
in if implemented.  
 

Page 64



 
 

The Local Authority offers a range of specialist teaching support services to advise, 
support and train mainstream schools and specialist settings to meet the needs of 
children and young people with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND).   
 
Currently, these services are mostly based in the city centre and are funded through the 
High Needs Block (HNB) (funding which the Council receives from the Government) 
and employ teachers, specialist practitioners and specialist support roles and Post 16 
Personal Advisors.  
 
The staff teams which are part of the preferred Option 3 in the proposals to the Council 
Executive are: 
 

• Autism Team 
• Cognition and Learning Team 
• Social, Emotional and Behavioural Difficulties (SEBD) Team 
• Physical and Medical Team 
• Sensory Team (which covers hearing and visual impairment and multi-sensory 

impairment 
• Portage  
• Early Years Intervention Team 
• 0-7 SEND team 
 

These teams currently have their own management arrangements and some sit within 
different services within Children’s Services Department of the Council.  
 
These teaching support services currently offer statutory and non-statutory support in 
mainly mainstream schools to support the inclusion and the removal of barriers to 
learning for children across all the prime SEND needs i.e. learning disabilities, autism, 
physical and medical needs, social, emotional and mental health needs and sensory 
needs (hearing, visual and multi-sensory impairment). 
 
The proposal is to create two integrated teams of staff for children and young people 
from birth up to 25 years of age, rather than the current arrangements which are 
separate teams within the SEND and Early Years’ services of the Council.  
 
One team will be the SEND Inclusive Education Service 0-25 team which will integrate 
specialist teachers and practitioners from the Portage, Early Years Intervention team, 0-
7 SEND team, and High Incidence SEND - Autism, Cognition and Learning and SEBD 
Teams into one team.   
 
This proposed team will offer early intervention in the home through Portage home 
teaching for young children; offer support throughout a child and young person’s 
educational journey in school and offer transition support post-16 into training and 
further education and post-19 into training and employment. 
 

Page 65



 
 

In addition it is proposed that a second low incidence 0-25 SEND team of staff will be 
created by joining together the current Sensory Team and the Physical and Medical 
Teams. This team will offer support to children with hearing impairment, visual 
impairment, multi-sensory impairment, physical and medical difficulties and disabilities.   
 
It is also proposed that this  team will offer early intervention in the home; offer support 
throughout  a child and young person’s educational journey in school and offer transition 
support post-16 into training and further education and post-19 into training and 
employment. 
 
Both of the new teams will work closely together. 
 
The proposals intend to create two teams within the same overarching service (SEND) 
covering children and young people 0-25 years of age.  
 
This will offer better transitions for children and young people and their families when 
they move between settings, schools, further and higher education and into 
employment.  The intended  result is fewer contacts between different teams and 
different services in the Council and therefore better and more timely communications 
with settings, schools, families and their children;  a more efficient service, more timely 
responses to service requests and referrals and overall a more joined up, coherent 
approach  to the children and young people with SEND.  

 
Children and young people with SEND and their families, schools and settings should 
benefit from the creation of having only  two specialist teaching and support teams; with 
more straightforward access to services,, fewer contacts with the different sections of 
the Council and people  and not being passed between separate teams within the 
SEND services.  
 
In addition, by creating these two teams it means the Council should keep expertise and 
SEND specialisms within the district. Because we are proposing that the teams will be 
part funded from the HNB (Council funding) and partly required to generate an income 
through selling services to schools, we can afford to retain a larger team of specialist 
staff. If the services continued to be wholly funded from the HNB, which is under 
significant budgetary pressure, there would need to be substantial reductions in staffing 
and some expertise and specialisms would inevitably be lost to the district.  
 

Section 2: What the impact of the proposal is likel y to be 
 
2.1 Will this proposal advance equality of opportun ity for people who share a 

protected characteristic and/or foster good relatio ns between people who 
share a protected characteristic and those that do not? If yes, please 
explain further. 
 

Page 66



 
 

Yes - This proposed preferred option is intended to advance the equality of opportunity 
and improve a range of outcomes for children with SEND 0-25 years-old by providing an 
integrated specialist teaching and support service for children and young people aged 
from birth to 25 years in early year’s settings, schools and colleges. 
 
The creation of two 0-25 teams under one SEND service – the SEND Inclusive 
Education Service which would include high incidence SEND along with Early Years 
specialists, Portage and post -16 personal advisers; and one for low incidence SEND,  
rather than the current structure of a number of separate teams with their own 
administration, financial support and management in two different service areas will 
provide a more joined up, district wide approach to raising outcomes of SEND children 
and young people from birth to 25 years of age across the district.  
 
It is intended that the proposed SEND Inclusive Education Service will service four 
areas and be aligned to the proposals for four area-based teams in Prevention and 
Early Help. This will mean that Council services are closer to the communities which 
they serve, there will be a much clearer pathway for any referrals, there will be better 
communications and shared systems between services so they can join up their offer 
for children, young people and families and make them more efficient and seamless.  
Families, schools and other service users should be able to identify more clearly who 
the teams are and who they need to contact and should get a more timely response. 
 
The creation of 0-25 specialist teams also means that children and young people will 
benefit from the continued support of the full range of training and qualified specialist 
staff from birth, through education and careers and transition support into further 
education and employment.    
 
2.2 Will this proposal have a positive impact and h elp to eliminate 

discrimination and harassment against, or the victi misation of people who 
share a protected characteristic? If yes, please ex plain further. 
 

Yes –. The proposals will ensure that all SEND children and young people with a range 
of special educational needs and disabilities will continue to have access to high quality 
support from the full range of trained specialist staff.  Their access to fully qualified and 
experienced teachers, practitioners, teaching assistants and other professionals will be 
improved through the creation of two integrated teams under one SEND service.  The 
opportunities will be further enhanced as the specialist staff will work more closely 
together, supporting each other and having access to targeted services and through the 
positioning  of these teams together with Prevention and Early Help services who will be 
area based ,communications and joint working with other services will be improved.  
 
 
2.3 Will this proposal potentially have a negative or disproportionate impact on 

people who share a protected characteristic?  If ye s, please explain further.  
 

This is a wide ranging programme of change and involves many people. This has been 
taken into consideration and for staff their terms and conditions of employment will not 

Page 67



 
 

change; there may be a change in their work/office base and the geographical location 
they cover. In these cases we will involve any staff with disabilities and mobility issues 
in discussions about work locations and bases, for example in relation to where they live 
and transport arrangements. 
 
For children and young people with SEND and their families there will should be no 
negative impacts as they will have professionals who are working more closely within 
their communities and with their family, setting or school; they should be telling their 
story once and fewer professionals are involved; communications should be more 
simple and straightforward.  
 
With integrated teams under one service, the services they provide to children, young 
people and their families will be more joined up, more timely and responsive. The 
services to settings and schools will be maintained and improved in the same way that 
is described for families.  
 
The selling of some services to schools will allow them, if they choose to do so, to buy 
additional support tailored to their requirements, to meet the needs of the children and 
young people they educate. 
 
The equality assessment indicates that this proposal is likely; overall, to have no impact 
or a low impact and that there is no disproportionate impact on any group who share 
protected characteristics.  .  
 
2.4 Please indicate the level of negative impact on  each of the protected 

characteristics? 
(Please indicate high (H), medium (M), low (L), no effect (N) for each)  
 

Protected Characteristics: Impact  
(H, M, L, N) 

Age N 

Disability L 

Gender reassignment N 

Race N 

Religion/Belief N 

Pregnancy and maternity N 

Sexual Orientation N 

Sex N 

Marriage and civil partnership N 

Additional Consideration:  N 

Page 68



 
 

Low income/low wage N 

 
 
2.5  How could the disproportionate negative impact s be mitigated or 
eliminated?  
(Note: Legislation and best practice require mitigations to be considered, but need only 
be put in place if it is possible.)  
 
The Local Authority and strategic partners have made significant efforts to mitigate 
against any negative impacts whilst continuing to use High Needs Block funding to 
intervene early and promote equality of opportunity and access to specialist support 
services so that it is used effectively to improve outcomes for Children and Young 
People with SEND. The provision of integrated high quality teams (for both High 
Incidence and Low Incidence SEND) of SEND specialists will mean that specialisms 
and expertise are retained within the district for the benefit of children and young people 
with SEND. 
 
It is important to note that schools have a responsibility to ensure that the needs of their 
pupils with SEND are met and this has not changed. The Local Authority is committed 
to working with all our children and young people in Bradford, irrespective of whether 
they are in academies or free schools, Independent or Private providers and 
Businesses who provide apprenticeships.  
 
The Local Authority will continue to undertake all of its statutory duties identified in the 
SEND Code of Practice and this assessment will be updated as and when further 
consultation is undertaken to analyse any impact on children and families who may use 
the services and staff providing the services. 

Section 3: Dependencies from other proposals  
 
3.1 Please consider which other services would need  to know about your 
proposal and the impacts you have identified.  Iden tify below which services you 
have consulted, and any consequent additional equal ity impacts that have been 
identified.  
 
We have conducted initial engagement and a period of  consultation with nursery 
schools, mainstream schools, special schools, colleges and post 16 providers, partners 
in the NHS, the Private and Voluntary sector, community partners, social care both 
Adults and Children, the SEND Parents/Carer Forum and Trade Union Organisations. A 
further paper is to be tabled to the Council Executive in January 2018 with the revised 
proposals which will discuss the preferred option and ask the Executive to recommend 
a period of further formal consultation including all previous consultees and interested 
parties.  

Page 69



 
 

Section 4: What evidence you have used? 
 
4.1 What evidence do you hold to back up this asses sment?  

 
The first Council Executive Report and accompanying evidence was discussed on 20 
June 2017. As part of this an extensive evidence and data was used including the 
incidence of SEND across the district and by type, the number of referrals and by age 
and type of Special needs, the number and geographical spread of Education and 
Health Care Plan assessments and by ward some of this is included or referenced in 
the executive report.  In addition, the findings from a survey to schools in July 2017 
about SEND Specialist services have also been taken into account in framing these 
proposals.  
 
An SEN Improvement Test at Appendix 1  
 
4.2 Do you need further evidence? 
 
An initial engagement on the proposals ran from 2 May 2017 to 6 June 2017. A wide 
range of stakeholders were consulted and we received a significant number of 
comments and questions. All of these have been reviewed, and as a result of this 
changes and amendments were made to the initial proposals. An executive Report was 
discussed at the Council Executive on 20 June 2017.   
 
Following this meeting a period of consultation started on 26 June 2017 due to run until 
31 August 2017. As a result of feedback and responses during this consultation period 
revisions were made to the initial proposed model. A number of options were 
considered which resulted in the Council’s  preferred option 3 being developed These 
revised proposals  are contained within a further Council Executive report due to be 
tabled in January 2018. Executive will therefore be asked to agree a further period of 
formal consultation on the proposed preferred option early in the New Year 2018 which 
will engage all interested parties. 

Section 5: Consultation Feedback 
 
5.1 Results from any previous consultations prior t o the proposal 
development. 
 
A summary of the responses from the initial consultation 2 May until 6 June has been 
attached to this document – ‘Responses to initial consultation’. Note also paragraph 4.2 
above regarding the formal consultation period.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 70



 
 

During the initial consultation period a total of 79 responses were received containing a 
total of 16 comments and 144 questions: 
 
Respondent Number of responses Comments Questions 
Internal staff 
Teams 

72 7 121 

Schools 3 2 2 
VCS 2 5 19 
Parent 2 2 2 
Overall 79 16 144 
 
5.2 The departmental feedback you provided on the p revious consultation (as 

at 5.1). 
 
As a result of this initial engagement period 2 May until 6 June some changes were 
made to the staffing of the then proposed Centres of Excellence. 
 
As a result of feedback and responses during the consultation period 26 June to 31 
August 31 2017 further revisions to the proposed model have been made and these will 
be presented to the Council Executive in January 2018.  
 
5.3 Feedback from current consultation following th e proposal development 

(e.g. following approval by Executive for budget co nsultation). 
 
As a result of feedback and responses during the consultation period 26 June to 31 
August 2017 further revisions to the proposed model have been made. It was also 
noted that this consultation took place during the school summer break. 
 
5.4 Your departmental response to the feedback on t he current consultation 

(as at 5.3) – include any changes made to the propo sal as a result of the 
feedback. 

 
Council Executive will meet on 9 January 2018 to consider further options and in 
particular to discuss the preferred Option 3 explained in this paper. It is intended that 
following that meeting a further formal consultation period will commence between 17 
January and 28 February 2018. When the further formal consultation closes a further 
report will be presented to the Council Executive in April 2018.  
 
 
 
 

Page 71



 
 

Appendix 4 - Consultation Plan 
 
SEND Transformation 0 -25 – Stakeholder Consultation Plan  
 Purpose  Type / Method  When / Frequency  
Parents and Carers across the 
District, including Parent and 
Carer Forums  
 
Communities of Interest 

To ensure wider reach during 
engagement / consultation / 
feedback 
 
Engage in scoping and design 
where directly affected 

- Focus Groups at Special 
Schools 

- On-line survey 
- Engagement and 

Consultation Council 
website 

- Local Offer website 
- Social media (Twitter / 

Facebook) / Stay 
Connected / Bradford App 

- Families Information Service 
- Citizen’s e-panel 

- Initial engagement 
02/05/2017 to 06/06/2017. 

- Initial formal consultation 
from 26/06/17. 

- Parents Forum (dates TBC). 
- Strategic Disability Group 

(TBC) 
 
 

Children and Young People 
(including those with SEND) 

To ensure wider reach during 
engagement / consultation / 
feedback 
 
To gather current experience 
accessing services 
 
To engage and consult in 
scoping and design where 
directly / indirectly affected 

- Youth Service 
- Focus Groups 
- On-line survey 
- Social media (Twitter / 

Facebook) / Stay 
Connected / Bradford App 

- Colleges / University 
- Engagement and 

Consultation Council 
website 

- Local Offer website 
 

- Engagement completed and 
analysis reviewed. 

- Initial formal consultation 
began on 26/06/2017. 

- Model revised and to be 
confirmed in April 2018 once 
analysis of further 
consultation feedback has 
been undertaken. 

  

P
age 72



 
 

Elected Members, Executive, 
CMT, DMT Meetings 
 
MP’s 
Parish Councils  
 

To support initiation and on-
going implementation across 
services and teams 
 
To keep informed of key 
information / changes and input 
into recommendations. 
 
Endorse and agree proposals. 

- Presentations, member 
briefings and updates 

- Engagement and 
Consultation Council 
website 

- Local Offer website 
- Parish and Town Councils 
 
 
 

- CMT  
- CMT/Pre-Exec  
- Council Executive  
- Keighley Area Committee – 

TBC 
- Shipley Area Committee – 

TBC  
- East Area Committee – 

TBC 
- South Area Committee – 

TBC 
- West Area Committee – 

TBC 
Key Partnership Groups  

- SEND & Behaviour 
Strategic Board 

- Children’s Trust Board 
- Safeguarding Board 
- Accountable Care 

Board 
- Area Committee 

Meetings 
- Overview & Scrutiny 
- Early Help Board  

To support initiation and on-
going implementation across 
services and teams 
 
To keep informed of key 
information / changes and input 
into recommendations. 
 
Endorse and agree proposals. 

- Presentations, briefings and 
updates  

- Engagement and 
Consultation Council 
website 

- Local Offer website 
 

- SEND Strategic Partnership 
– (date to be confirmed) 

- Overview & Scrutiny – (date 
to be confirmed) 

- Accountable Care Board – 
(date to be confirmed) 

- Safeguarding Board – (date 
to be confirmed) 

- Children’s Trust Board – 
(date to be confirmed) 

-  
  

P
age 73



 
 

 
Private, voluntary and 
independent sector  
 
Diocese Boards of Education 
–Church of England 
Catholic Diocese 
Muslim Association /Council 
for Mosque 
 
Neighbouring Local Authorities  
 
 

To support initiation and on-
going implementation across 
key services and teams 
 
To keep informed of key 
information / changes and input 
into recommendations 

- Briefings and updates  
 
 

- Dates to be confirmed with 
Peter Horner 

National Organisations 
- DfE 
- National Charities 

 

To keep informed of key 
information / changes and input 
into recommendations 

- On-line survey 
- Social media (Twitter / 

Facebook) / Stay 
Connected / Bradford App 

- Engagement and 
Consultation Council 
website 

- Local Offer website 
 

 

Key teams and services: 
• LA 
• Police 
• Health Visiting and 

School Nursing 
• VCS 
• Children’s Centres 

 

To engage in scoping and 
design when directly affected. 
 
To keep informed of key 
information / changes and input 
into recommendations 
 
To deliver changes in practice 
on the ground 

- Web-based and newsletter 
updates  

- Updates through 
Management and staff 
meetings. 

- Drop-in sessions and 
briefings with those teams 
directly affected. 

- CMT Messages 
- BradNet 

- Initial briefings to affected 
staff and colleagues on 
02/05/2017 (informal 
engagement), 26/06/2017 
(formal consultation). 

- Drop-in sessions to be 
scheduled during 
consultation (dates to be 
confirmed) 

 

P
age 74



 
 

- Online survey 
- Social media (Twitter / 

Facebook) / Stay 
Connected / Bradford App 

- Departmental Consultation 
Leads 

- Engagement and 
Consultation Council 
website 

- Local Offer website 

 

Trade Unions 
 

To keep informed of key 
information / changes and input 
into recommendations 
 
To consult under Managing 
Workforce Change as and 
when required 

- Briefing through OJC Level 
3 in the first instance 

- Regular monthly meetings 
with Unions to update on 
developments throughout 
programme. 

- Consultation under 
Workforce Changes as and 
when required 

- Engagement and 
Consultation Council 
website 

- Local Offer website 
 

- OJC Level 3 on 22/06/2017 
- Fortnightly meetings to be 

scheduled (dates to be 
confirmed) 

All staff from Nurseries, 
Primary and Secondary 
Schools, Academies, MATs, 
Governors 

To keep informed of key 
information / changes and input 
into recommendations through 
an engagement and 
consultation period. 
 
To engage and consult in 
scoping and design where 

- Updates provided through 
the Head teacher briefings 

- Bradford Schools Online 
- On-line survey 
- Social media (Twitter / 

Facebook) / Stay Connected 
/ Bradford App 

- Engagement and 

- Initial engagement 
02/05/2017 – 06/06/2017 

- Initial formal consultation 
began from 26/06/2017 

- Head teacher, Governors & 
other key briefings  

P
age 75



 
 

directly / indirectly affected Consultation Council 
website 

- Local Offer website 
 

 

P
age 76


	Agenda
	6 *SCAPAG MEETING NOTES - 24 JANUARY 2018
	7 NOMINATION TO LIST PROPERTY AS AN ASSET OF COMMUNITY VALUE - BURLEY COMMUNITY LIBRARY
	SAC14FebDocYApp1
	SAC14FebDocYApp2

	8 NOMINATION TO LIST PROPERTY AS AN ASSET OF COMMUNITY VALUE - DENHOLME COMMUNITY LIBRARY
	SAC14FebDocZApp1
	SAC14FebDocZApp2

	9 PROPOSAL FOR THE RESTRUCTURE OF SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND DISABILITIES (SEND) SPECIALIST TEACHING SUPPORT SERVICES



